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Rakes Head Farm (no longer in existence)
IInnttrroodduuccttiioonn
Although this farm no longer exists many people in the village remember it well. It was situated
about 50 yards from Hest Bank Lane at the beginning of Raikes Head Lane (Old Bob's as it is
sometimes called). The land between the site and Hest Bank Lane is now for sale as building land.

Rakes Head Farm was demolished in the early 1960s with Seaview Drive and Raikes Hill being
built on its land. Rake means land near, or containing, a narrow hill path; the name comes from
the Old English: "hraca". When the Misses Derhams were children, the farmer at Rakes Head had
a small house built on stilts on the left of the lane (opposite the farm) and in the single room was a
table on which was a Bible. Here he went to read and he left it open so that the children could
also go in to read. This was about 1913 so the owner was probably Joseph Frankland.

The first definitive reference to the owner of Rakes Head farm was in 1813. The Manor Court
documents show Thomas Mansergh as the owner and when he died, his only daughter Ellen
inherited the property. Ellen was the wife of Joseph Barnes, they probably did not occupy the
property and eventually sold it in 1817 for £650 to Richard Clark

TThhee  MMaannsseerrgghhss  ooff  SSllyynnee--wwiitthh--HHeesstt
As I imagine that Rakes Head was built in the early 1700s it is probable that the Manserghs were
the builders, they certainly owned the house and the land and would at that time be an important
family in the village. The Manserghs had been in Slyne from the early 1700s and previously there
were Manserghs in Ancliffe which was part of Slyne. It is almost certain that they were the same
family. Here are some relevant items from the registers of Bolton-le-Sands Church.

11773344::  MMaarrggaarreett  MMaannsseerrgghh,,  wwiiddooww  ooff  AAnncclliiffffee  iinn  SSlliinnee,,  ddiieess..
11773333::  JJoohhnn,,  ssoonn  ooff  RRiicchhaarrdd  MMaannsseerrgghh  ooff  SSlliinnee,,  bboorrnn..
11773344::  MMaarrggaarreett,,  ddaauugghhtteerr  ooff  RRoobbeerrtt  MMaannsseerrgghh  ooff  SSlliinnee,,  bboorrnn..
11772255::  RRoobbeerrtt  MMaannsseerrgghh  ooff  AAnnttcclliiffffee  iinn  tthhee  CCoo..  ooff  LLaannccaasstteerr,,  hhuussbbaannddmmaann,,  aanndd  EElllleenn  EEddmmuunnddssoonn  ooff  WWhhiittee
LLuunndd  iinn  tthhee  PPaarriisshh  ooff  LLaannccaasstteerr..  mmaarrrriieedd..
11773388::  MMaarryy,,  ddaauugghhtteerr  ooff  RRoobbeerrtt  MMaannsseerrgghh  ooff  HHeesstt,,  bboorrnn
11774411::  EElliizzaabbeetthh,,  ddaauugghhtteerr  ooff  RRoobbeerrtt  MMaannsseerrgghh  ooff  HHeesstt  BBaannkk,,  bboorrnn
11775500::  JJoohhnn  SShhuutt  2299,,  MMiiddddlleettoonn,,  hhuussbbaannddmmaann  aanndd  AAnnnnee  MMaannsseerrgghh,,  2222,,  HHaattlleexx,,  2244tthh..  NNoovv..

The Manor Court record in 1756 shows a surrender by Robert Mansergh of several fields for the
use of Leonard Stout:

FFeebb..  11775566::  SSllyynnee  wwiitthh  HHeesstt  MMaannoorr  CCoouurrtt,,  SSuurrrreennddeerr  bbeeffoorree  JJoohhnn  TTaatthhaamm  DDeeppuuttyy  SStteewwaarrdd  ffoorr  tthhee  KKiinngg,,  bbyy
RRoobbeerrtt  MMaannsseerrgghh  aanndd  IIssaabbeellll  LLooddggee  ooff  oonnee  aaccrree  iinn  WWaaiittee  MMyyeerr  oorr  SSllyynnee  PPaassttuurree  ffoorr  tthhee  uussee  ooff  LLeeoonnaarrdd
SSttoouutt  ooff  HHaattlleexx,,  ggeenntt,,  wwhhoo  iiss  aaddmmiitttteedd  aass  tteennaanntt,,  RReenntt  66dd..

Robert Mansergh was a copy-holder on a list of tenants from 1759-63, this copyhold is probably
Rakes Head, which his son Thomas inherited from him. Unfortunately there is no record of the
birth of Thomas.

Thomas Mansergh was a juror at the Manor Court from 1792 until1805. There is mention of him
in 1805: 'Thomas Mansergh is now 78 years old". This means that he was born in 1727, so he was
most likely the son of Robert Mansergh of Antcliffe and Ellen Edmundson who were married in
1725; he named his only daughter Ellen, probably after his mother. We certainly know that he
could write because he signed his name on Manor Court Documents! Thomas died in 1812 aged
85.
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11881122;;  TThhoommaass  MMaannsseerrgghh  iiss  ddeeaadd,,  aa  hheerriioott  hhaatthh  aaccccrruueedd..  EElllleenn  tthhee  wwiiffee  ooff  JJoosseepphh  BBaarrnneess  iiss  hhiiss  oonnllyy  cchhiilldd
aanndd  hheeiirr..

LLaatteerr  OOwwnneerrss  ooff  RRaakkeess  HHeeaadd
The Richard Clark who bought Rakes Head in 1817 probably did not stay very long for I can find
no mention of him after this time. In 1827, there is a death recorded of Sarah Tate of Rakes Head
aged 4, so it appears that the Tate family were the next tenants. By 1841 the owner was Thomas
Greene and the tenant was Thomas Hodgson.

TThhoommaass  HHooddggssoonn,,  ffaarrmmeerr,,  aaggeedd  3300..
JJaannee  HHooddggssoonn,,  aaggeedd  3300..
JJeennnneett  HHooddggssoonn,,  aaggeedd  88..
RRoobbeerrtt  HHooddggssoonn,,  aaggeedd  55..
SSaarraahh  HHooddggssoonn,,  aaggeedd  33..
EElliizzaabbeetthh  MMoouunntt,,  aaggeedd  2200,,  ffeemmaallee  sseerrvvaanntt..
JJaammeess  TTaayylloorr,,  aaggeedd  44..    AAnndd  HHeennrryy  TTaayylloorr,,  aaggeedd  22..  [[CCeennssuuss  rreettuurrnn  11884411]]

The Tithe map of 1845 shows that the owner of Rakes Head was Thomas Greene, the land
included part of Mansergh Meadow, Long Rakes, Stripe and Slyney Parrock. The tenant was still
Thomas Hodgson. In 1846 there was a death recorded of Amelia Ord, Rakes Head, aged 34, wife
of Mr. John Ord, Railway Overlooker. It is possible that the Ords were lodgers at Rakes Head.

TThhee  KKiinngg  FFaammiillyy
By 1861 the family of King originally from Slyne had moved in to Rakes Head Farm.

RRaakkeesshheeaadd  ffaarrmm,,  HHeesstt  BBaannkk  RRooaadd..  FFrraanncciiss  KKiinngg,,  aaggeedd  5500,,  ffaarrmmeerr  ooff  1177  aaccrreess  aanndd  jjooiinneerr,,  eemmppllooyyss  22  jjooiinneerrss
aanndd  aa  llaabboouurreerr..
AAnnnn  KKiinngg,,  wwiiffee  5522..
FFrraanncciiss,,  ssoonn,,  aaggeedd  2255,,  jjooiinneerr..
JJoohhnn,,  ssoonn  aaggeedd  2233,,  jjooiinneerr..
DDaanniieell,,  ssoonn,,  aaggeedd  1166,,  sscchhoollaarr..
JJaammeess  CCllaarrkk,,  mmaallee  sseerrvvaanntt,,  aaggrriiccuullttuurraall..  [[CCeennssuuss  rreettuurrnn  11886611]]

In a directory of 1866 Francis King of Rakes Head described himself as a wheelwright. By 1871
the family had suffered a tragedy, their eldest son Francis lost his wife, there were two small
children from the marriage and all were living at Rakes Head:

FFrraanncciiss  KKiinngg,,  aaggeedd  6600,,  ffaarrmmeerr  ooff  1133  aaccrreess  aanndd  jjooiinneerr,,  eemmppllooyyiinngg  11  mmaann..
AAnnnn,,  wwiiffee,,  aaggeedd  6633..
FFrraanncciiss,,  ssoonn,,  wwiiddoowweerr,,  aaggeedd  3355,,  jjooiinneerr..
DDaanniieell,,  ssoonn  aaggeedd  2255,,  aaggrriiccuullttuurraall  wwoorrkkeerr..
WWiilllliiaamm,,  ggrraannddssoonn,,  aaggeedd  66,,  sscchhoollaarr..
JJoohhnn,,  ggrraannddssoonn  aaggeedd  22..
CChhaarrlleess  FFootthheerrggiillll,,  aaggeedd  2233,,  llooddggeerr,,  HHoopp  MMeerrcchhaanntt..  [[CCeennssuuss  rreettuurrnn  11887711]]

In 1873 Agnes King of Rakes Head died aged 66, she was obviously the wife of the elder Francis
but for some reason her name is wrong in the register. In 1881 we see that the second son Daniel
had become a gardener, and William the eldest grandchild had left the farm.

FFrraanncciiss  KKiinngg,,  aaggeedd  7700,,  JJooiinneerr  aanndd  WWhheeeellwwrriigghhtt,,  wwiiddoowweerr..
FFrraanncciiss  HHoollddeenn  KKiinngg,,  ssoonn,,  wwiiddoowweerr,,  JJooiinneerr..
DDaanniieell  PPaarrkk  KKiinngg,,  ssoonn,,  aaggeedd  3355,,  ggaarrddeenneerr..
JJoohhnn  HHooddggssoonn  KKiinngg,,  ggrraannddssoonn,,  aaggeedd  1122,,  sscchhoollaarr..  [[CCeennssuuss  rreettuurrnn  11888811]]
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The King family continued in the village until at least the 1930's, mostly in Slyne. Mrs Schofield
tells me that there were Kings using the barn and the area behind Little Grange when she was a
child, they were blacksmiths and the children in the area called it 'The Kings Smithy". In 1891
Christopher Robinson and his family were living at Rakes Head.

CChhrriissttoopphheerr  RRoobbiinnssoonn,,  aaggeedd  4455,,  bboorrnn  iinn  LLaannccaasshhiirree,,  ffaarrmmeerr..
MMaarryy  AAnnnn  RRoobbiinnssoonn,,  wwiiffee,,  aaggeedd  5511..
MMaarryy  AAnnnn,,  ddaauugghhtteerr,,  aaggeedd  1133..
MMaarryy  AAnnnn,,  ggrraannddddaauugghhtteerr,,  aaggeedd  44..
MMiicchhaaeell  MMeettccaallffee,,  aaggeedd  4488,,  sseerrvvaanntt..  [[CCeennssuuss  rreettuurrnn  11889911]]

In 1913 Joseph Frankland was the tenant at Rakes Head and in 1920 it was sold as part of the
Dawson-Greene Estate. By that time the area was only 2a-3r-18p and its rental was £20 per
annum. The tenant in 1920 was George Armistead.


